
Corporate, Customer and Community 
Services Directorate

Legal and Democratic Services  Cumbria House 117 Botchergate
Carlisle, Cumbria CA1 1RD 

Tel 01228 606060  Email democratic.services@cumbria.gov.uk

21 October 2019

To:  The Chair and Members of the Standards 
Committee

Agenda
STANDARDS COMMITTEE

A meeting of the Standards Committee will be held as follows: 

Date: Tuesday 29 October 2019
Time: 10.00 am
Place: Cabinet Meeting Room, Cumbria House, Carlisle

Dawn Roberts
Executive Director – Corporate, Customer and Community Services

Enquiries and requests for supporting papers to:  Lorraine Davis
Direct Line: 07929164805
Email: lorraine.davis@cumbria.gov.uk

This agenda is available on request in alternative formats

Serving the People of Cumbria

mailto:democratic.services@cumbria.gov.uk


MEMBERSHIP

Labour (2) Conservative (2) Liberal Democrat (1)

Mr F Cassidy
Ms C McCarron-Holmes

Mr LN Fisher
Dr S Haraldsen

Mr C Hogg

Independent (2)

Mr S Sim (Chair)
Vacancy (Vice Chair)

ACCESS TO INFORMATION

Agenda and Reports

Copies of the agenda and Part I reports are available for members of the public to inspect 
prior to the meeting.  Copies will also be available at the meeting.

The agenda and Part I reports are also available on the County Council’s website – 
http://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=124&Year=0 

Background Papers

Requests for the background papers to the Part I reports, excluding those papers that 
contain exempt information, can be made to the Legal and Democratic Services Unit at the 
address overleaf between the hours of 9.00 am and 4.30 pm, Monday to Friday.

http://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=124&Year=0


A G E N D A

PART 1: ITEMS LIKELY TO BE CONSIDERED IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS 
AND PUBLIC

1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

To receive any apologies for absence.
  

2  EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

To consider whether the press and public should be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of any items of business on the agenda.
  

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members are invited to disclose any disclosable pecuniary interest they have in any item 
on the agenda which comprises

1 Details of any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for 
profit or gain. 

2 Details of any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from 
the authority) made or provided within the relevant period in respect of any 
expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards your 
election expenses.  (This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade 
union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992. 

3 Details of any contract which is made between you (or a body in which you have 
a beneficial interest) and the authority 

(a) Under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 
executed; and 

(b) Which has not been fully discharged. 

4 Details of any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the authority.  

5 Details of any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of 
the authority for a month or longer.  

6 Details of any tenancy where (to your knowledge) 

(a) The landlord is the authority; and

(b) The tenant is a body in which you have a beneficial interest.



7 Details of any beneficial interest in securities of a body where

(a) That body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area 
of the authority; and

(b) Either – 

(i) The total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or

(ii) If that share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the relevant 
person has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class.

In addition, you must also disclose other non-pecuniary interests set out in the Code of 
Conduct where these have not already been registered.

Note

A “disclosable pecuniary interest” is an interest of a councillor or their partner 
(which means spouse or civil partner, a person with whom they are living as 
husband or wife, or a person with whom they are living as if they are civil 
partners). 
  

4  MINUTES

To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 18 April 2019 (copy 
enclosed).
  (Pages 7 - 10)

5  IMPLEMENTATION OF BEST PRACTICES RECOMMENDED BY THE 
COMMITTEE ON STANDARDS IN PUBLIC LIFE

To receive a report from the Monitoring Officer (copy enclosed). 
  (Pages 11 - 16)

6  SOCIAL MEDIA GUIDE FOR MEMBERS

To receive a report from the Monitoring Officer (copy enclosed). 
  (Pages 17 - 28)

7  MONITORING OFFICER UPDATE

To receive a report from the Monitoring Officer (copy enclosed). 
  (Pages 29 - 32)

8  DATE OF NEXT MEETING

To note that the next meeting of the Committee will be held on 5 December 2019.
  



STANDARDS COMMITTEE

Minutes of a Meeting of the Standards Committee held on Friday, 26 April 2019 at 
10.00 am at Committee Room 2 - County Offices, Kendal, LA9 4RQ

PRESENT:

County Councillors

Mr LN Fisher (Chair)
Mr C Hogg
Mr A McGuckin

Independent Members

 

Also in Attendance:-

Mrs L Davis - Democratic Services Officer
Ms S Lindsay - Group Solicitor/Manager, Environment
Ms I Puzio - Chief Legal Officer (Monitoring Officer)
Mr R Worsley - Independent Person on Standards Committee

PART 1 – ITEMS CONSIDERED IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PUBLIC AND 
PRESS

In the absence of the Chair it was agreed that Mr L Fisher be elected Chair for this 
meeting only.  

1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Mr F Cassidy, Dr S Haraldsen, Mrs C 
McCarron-Holmes (Mr A McGuckin attended in her absence) and Mr S Sim.

2 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

RESOLVED, that the press and public be admitted to the meeting for all items of 
business.

3 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no disclosures of interest on this occasion.

4 MINUTES

5

Agenda Item 4



RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the meeting held on 27 April 2018 be agreed as a 
correct record and signed by the Chair.

5 REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE ON STANDARDS IN PUBLIC LIFE

A report from the Monitoring Officer was received which updated Members on the 
report of the Committee on Standards in Public Life (CSPL) on Local Government 
Ethical Standards which had been published in January 2019.  The report presented 
the outcome of the Committee’s review of the effectiveness of the changes to the 
local government standards regime introduced by the Localism Act 2011.  It was 
noted that the County Council had responded to the consultation process.

The Committee concluded that most councillors and officers maintain high 
standards of ethical conduct.  The Monitoring Officer made members aware the 
CSPL were recommending bullying and harassment by Members be incorporated 
into Code of Conducts.  She reported that following a recent reported court decision, 
it was clear that, where an allegation of bullying and harassment is against a 
member, it must be dealt with under the Members’ Code of Conduct and could not 
be dealt with under other Council policies.

Members noted that in total, 26 recommendations were contained in the report, 
mainly covering three broad areas:- the Code of Conduct, Investigations and 
Corporate Governance and Leadership.  In discussion, it was agreed that most of 
the 15 Best Practices outlined in the report could be looked at now.  The CSPL 
would be reviewing implementation in 2020.  It was explained that the Code of 
Conduct would be reviewed following guidance received from the LGA but primary 
legislation by the Government was needed for many of the report’s findings.  The 
Committee were informed that a further report would be brought to the Standards 
Committee once the LGA guidance had been received and reviewed by the 
Monitoring Officer.  

The Committee were informed that with regard to Investigations, the Monitoring 
Officer had attended a meeting of the Cumbria Monitoring Officers’ Group which 
would be taking some of the recommended Best Practices forward.  It had been 
agreed that the authorities’ Independent Persons could be utilised across the county 
if necessary. The difficulty in recruiting Independent Persons was discussed, and 
the Monitoring Officer agreed to review and start the recruitment process.  The 
recommendation on Independent Persons having to be consulted before an 
investigation was highlighted as it was felt that this would provide an extra level of 
protection.

Following a question on Corporate Governance and Leadership, the Monitoring 
Officer agreed to review the current arrangements in place with Group Leaders.

It was noted that the District Councils operate under the same Code of Conduct for 
Members which complied with legislation.  It was highlighted that the County 
Council’s Code also included prejudicial interests.  The Cumbria Monitoring Officer 
Group was looking to standardise the codes as a number of members were also 
members of district and parish councils.  

6



Members expressed concern about the length of time it would take Government to 
legislate.  The Monitoring Officer advised that no specific timescale had been given 
by the LGA for the refreshed guidance on the Code of Conduct, but she anticipated 
up to 12 months.

Further to a question from the Independent Person, the Monitoring Officer reported 
that a Members’ Social Media Guide would be circulated in the near future. 

RESOLVED, that 

(1) the report be noted;
(2) the Monitoring Officer review the list of Best Practices and implement 

where practicable, but the Council wait for the LGA Code of Conduct 
guidance before reviewing the Council’s Code;

(3) the Monitoring Officer review the recruitment process for 
Independent Persons;

(4) the Monitoring Officer review the current arrangements with the 
Group Leaders.

6 MONITORING OFFICER UPDATE

The Committee received an update report from the Monitoring Officer on complaints 
received since changes were made to the procedure for investigation of complaints 
regarding breaches of the Members’ Code of Conduct.

Members were informed that since the implementation of the agreed protocol nine 
matters had been raised to date with the Monitoring Officer.  She explained that 
three had not been pursued after the potential complainant had been asked to 
complete the standard form, three were for the District Council to handle, one was 
resolved informally prior to the submission of a form, one did not relate to Members 
and the final matter was rejected by the Monitoring Officer as the completed form 
did not contain sufficient information to enable investigation of the complaint.

In discussion of the report, it was noted that the Council had an open and 
transparent complaints procedure which was easily accessible for members of the 
public on the Cumbria County Council website.  The Monitoring Officer explained 
that extra support was provided if necessary.  

In discussion, the Monitoring Officer agreed to revisit the submission of an Annual 
Monitoring Officer report to Council.  Members discussed the usefulness of looking 
at statistical trends that may highlight emerging standards issues.  It was further 
agreed that a statistical comparison report on complaint numbers be submitted to 
the next meeting. 

Appended to the report was the adopted Protocol with Cumbria Constabulary which 
explained the procedure when monitoring officers referred complaints about alleged 
criminal offences under the Localism Act 2011 (failure to register and/or declare 

7



disclosable pecuniary interests).  During discussion of this, the Monitoring Officer 
agreed to inform Members by email who would undertake this role in the Police 
Force.  

The Monitoring Officer informed members that a new protocol had been adopted to 
deal with complaints against the Police and Crime Commissioner but confirmed this 
process did not involve the Independent Person.

RESOLVED, that 

1) the report be noted;
2) the Monitoring Officer revisit submission of an Annual Monitoring Officer 

Report to Council;
3) the Monitoring Officer produce a statistical report on complaints to the 

next meeting.

7 DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING

The next Meeting of the Standards Committee would be held on 5 July 2019 at 
10.00 am at Cumbria House, Carlisle.

The meeting ended at 10.50 am

8



STANDARDS COMMITTEE

Meeting date: 29 October 2019

From: The Monitoring Officer 

IMPLEMENTATION OF BEST PRACTICE RECOMMENDED BY 
THE COMMITTEE ON STANDARDS IN PUBLIC LIFE

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1 This report provides and update to the Standards Committee on the 
implementation of best practice recommendations made by the 
Committee on Standards in Public Life.

2.0 STRATEGIC PLANNING AND EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

2.1 A robust ethical standards regime supports the Council in achieving its 
strategic aims.

2.2 There are no equality implications arising directly out this report. 

3.0 RECOMMENDATION

3.1 Members are recommended to note the report.

4.0 BACKGROUND

4.1 At its meeting on 26 April 2019 the Standards Committee received a report 
on the report of the Committee on Standards in Public Life made in January 
2019 following the Committee’s review of Ethical Standards in Local 
Government.

4.2 Members were advised that the report contained some recommendations 
that required legislation or action by the Local Government Association.  
However there were a number of recommendations of best practice, which 
local authorities were encouraged to implement immediately.

4.3 The Monitoring Officer reported that she would be implementing the best 
practice recommendations, advising members that with regard to changes to 

9

Agenda Item 5



the Code of Conduct, it would be sensible to wait for the publication of a new 
model Code by the Local Government Association. The Monitoring Officer 
agreed to update the Standards Committee on progress with implementation 
of recommended best practice.

4.4 Appendix 1 of this report sets out the progress made since April 2019 for 
members’ consideration.

4.5 Progress has been made in reviewing the position with regard to existing 
good practice, which is noted in Appendix 1.  In addition, the Monitoring 
Officer has implemented early consultation with the Independent Person on 
all complaints and has work ongoing to implement regular meetings with 
political group leaders and to improve recruitment to independent roles 
within the Council, including the Independent Person. A number of 
recommendations relate to the member complaints procedure and the 
Monitoring Officer intends to report an updated complaints procedure to 
members in December 2019.  

5.0 CONCLUSION

5.1 Members are asked to consider the progress report of the Monitoring Officer 
attached as Appendix 1 and make any observations they consider 
appropriate.

Iolanda Puzio
Chief Legal Officer 
21 October 2019

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 – Monitoring Officer update on implementation of best practice 
recommendations.

Electoral Division(s): All 

Executive Decision No

Key Decision N/A

If a Key Decision, is the proposal published in the current Forward Plan? N/A

Is the decision exempt from call-in on grounds of urgency? N/A

10



N/AIf exempt from call-in, has the agreement of the Chair of the relevant 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee been sought or obtained?

N/AHas this matter been considered by Overview and Scrutiny?
If so, give details below.

PREVIOUS RELEVANT COUNCIL OR EXECUTIVE DECISIONS
No previous relevant decisions.

CONSIDERATION BY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
Not considered by Overview and Scrutiny.

BACKGROUND PAPERS
No background papers. 

Contact: Shamim Lindsay, Group Lawyer/Manager.  Telephone 07976062123

11



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

Committee on Standards in Public Life Best Practice Recommendations (those 
applying to County Councils) 

Recommendation Comment 
Local authorities should include prohibitions 
on bullying and harassment in codes of 
conduct.  These should include a definition 
of bullying and harassment, supplemented 
with a list of examples of the sort of 
behaviour covered by such a definition.

April Standards Committee: Code of 
Conduct to be reviewed following 
publication of LGA Guidance. Not yet 
published. 

Councils should include provisions in their 
code of conduct requiring councillors to 
comply with any formal standards 
investigation and prohibiting trivial or 
malicious allegations by councillors. 

April Standards Committee: Code of 
Conduct to be reviewed following 
publication of LGA Guidance. Not yet 
published.

Principal authorities (e.g. the Council) 
should review their code of conduct each 
year and regularly seek, where possible, 
the views of the public, community 
organisations and neighbouring authorities.

April Standards Committee: Code of 
Conduct to be reviewed following 
publication of LGA Guidance. Not yet 
published. 

The Cumbria Monitoring Officers’ Group 
maintains an oversight of the operation of 
codes of conduct across the 6 District 
Councils and the County Council. 

An authority’s code should be readily 
accessible both to councillors and the 
public, in a prominent position on the 
council’s website and available in council 
premises.

The Code of Conduct is available on the 
Council’s website in the Your Council/ 
Constitution section of the website.

Local authorities should update their gifts 
and hospitality register at least once per 
quarter, and publish it in an accessible 
format.

The Gifts and Hospitality Register forms 
part of a member’s register of interests and 
can be found in the Your Council / Find 
Your Local Councillor section of the 
website. 

Councils should publish a clear and 
straightforward public interest test against 
which allegations are filtered.

The Monitoring Officer intends to bring an 
updated complaints procedure to Standards 
Committee in December.  

Councils should have access to at least 2 
Independent Persons.

This work is ongoing including looking at 
where the Council has gaps in recruitment 
to this and similar roles, whether roles can 
be joined to make them more attractive and 
the possibility of payment for independent 
persons in various roles.  

In terms of reach, future recruitments will be 
supported by People Management Service 

13



targeted recruitment support, which targets 
advertisements towards relevant 
publications and on websites and searches 
social media for suitable people from whom 
to encourage application.

An Independent Person should be 
consulted as to whether to undertake a 
formal investigation on an allegation, and 
should have the option to review and 
comment on allegations which the 
responsible officer is minded to dismiss as 
without merit, vexatious or trivial.

In the current complaints procedure a 
discretion to consult the Independent 
Person rests with the Monitoring Officer.  
Since the CSPL’s recommendations were 
made the Monitoring Officer consults with 
the Independent Person early in the 
process on all complaints. It is intended to 
incorporate this into the complaints 
procedure in due course. 

Where a local authority makes a decision 
on an allegation of misconduct following a 
formal investigation, a decision notice 
should be published as soon as possible on 
its website, including a brief statement of 
facts, the provisions of the code engaged 
by the allegations, the view of the 
Independent Person, the reasoning of the 
decision maker and any sanction applied.

The Monitoring Officer intends to bring an 
updated complaints procedure to Standards 
Committee in December.  

A local authority should have 
straightforward and accessible guidance on 
its website on how to make a complaint 
under the code of conduct, the process for 
handling complaints, and estimated 
timescales for investigations and outcomes.  

The Monitoring Officer intends to bring an 
updated complaints procedure to Standards 
Committee in December.  

A local authority should have procedures in 
place to address conflicts of interests when 
undertaking a standards investigation.  
Possible steps should include asking the 
Monitoring Officer from a different authority 
to undertake the investigation. 

The Monitoring Officer intends to bring an 
updated complaints procedure to Standards 
Committee in December.  

Councils should report on separate bodies 
they have set up or which they own as part 
of their annual governance statement, and 
give a full picture of their relationship with 
these bodies.  Separate bodies created by 
the Council should abide by the Nolan 
principle of openness and publish their 
board agendas, minutes and annual reports 
in an accessible place.

The Monitoring Officer will consider this 
recommendation when preparing the next 
annual governance statement in early 2020.  

Senior Officers should meet regularly with 
political group leaders or group whips to 
discuss standards issues. 

The Monitoring Officer is currently 
progressing this recommendation. 

14



STANDARDS COMMITTEE

Meeting date: 29 October 2019

From: The Monitoring Officer 

SOCIAL MEDIA GUIDE FOR MEMBERS

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1 This report presents draft social media guidance and quick guide on 
the use of social media by elected and co-opted members, focusing on 
member conduct and legal issues.

2.0 STRATEGIC PLANNING AND EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

2.1 A robust ethical standards regime supports the Council in achieving its 
strategic aims.

2.2 There are no equality implications arising directly out this report.

3.0 RECOMMENDATION

3.1 That members consider and comment on the draft guidance and the 
draft quick guide.

3.2 That members agree that the draft guidance, with any amendments 
requested by the Standards Committee, is circulated to the political 
groups for comment prior to being finalised by the Monitoring Officer. 

4.0 BACKGROUND

4.1 The Standards Committee considered the need for guidance on the use of 
social media by members, focusing on legal and ethical compliance, at its 
meeting on 27 April 2018.  At this meeting it was agreed to establish a 
working group to develop guidance on the following:

a) General Guidance

b) Guidance on legal risks and how to avoid them

15

Agenda Item 6



c) Guidance on the application of the Members’ Code of Conduct.

4.2 A working group met to consider the most appropriate way to provide 
guidance to members.   At the workshop, members offered varying 
perspectives on the form that guidance should take, to be most useful to 
members generally. 

4.3 The appended draft guidance therefore offers guidance in two forms, a quick 
guide (with essential “do’s and don’ts”) and more detailed guidance which 
provides greater depth of explanation for the advice given.  Members are 
invited to consider what form of guidance to issue.  The recommended form 
is the draft guidance accompanied by the quick guide, in order to provide 
both easily digestible and more detailed information.

4.4 The draft guidance incorporates the views of the Committee on Standards in 
Public Life, in their January 2019 report, which recommends that when using 
social media members should always adhere to the Nolan principles of 
public life (incorporated into the Members’ Code of Conduct). 

4.5 The Committee found that members are inevitably associated with their role 
to some extent in all their public life, with the consequence that any 
comments made on any publicly accessible social media which identify the 
member or relate to their role as a member would fall under the Code of 
Conduct.  This would include views expressed on personal social media if 
the comments are publicly available, even if accompanied by a disclaimer 
that the account is personal. 

4.6 The guidance also includes advice from the Electoral Commission about 
how members who themselves become the target of harassment, 
intimidation or threats (including on social media) can protect themselves. 

5.0 OPTIONS

5.1 Members may approve the draft guidance without amendment, or may 
recommend that amendments are made to content and/or form before the 
guidance is finalised and released to members.

6.0 CONCLUSION

6.1 Members are asked to consider and comment on the draft social media 
guidance appended to this report.  Members are also asked to agree that the 
draft guidance, with any amendments requested by the Committee, is 
circulated to the political groups for further comment before being finalised 
by the Monitoring Officer. 

Iolanda Puzio
Chief Legal Officer (Monitoring Officer)
21 October 2019

16



APPENDICES

Appendix 1 Draft Social Media Guidance for Members
Appendix 2 Quick Guide for Members

Executive Decision No

Key Decision No

If a Key Decision, is the proposal published in the current Forward Plan? N/A

Is the decision exempt from call-in on grounds of urgency? N/A

N/AIf exempt from call-in, has the agreement of the Chair of the relevant 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee been sought or obtained?

NoHas this matter been considered by Overview and Scrutiny?
If so, give details below.

PREVIOUS RELEVANT COUNCIL OR EXECUTIVE DECISIONS

No previous relevant decisions

CONSIDERATION BY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY

Not considered by Overview and Scrutiny

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Report to Standards Committee 27 April 2018
Local Government Ethical Standards: Report of the Committee on Standards 
in Public Life (January 2019)
When it goes too far (Electoral Commission leaflet)

Contact: Shamim Lindsay, Group Lawyer/Manager 
Telephone:  07976062123

17



This page is intentionally left blank



CUMBRIA COUNTY COUNCIL

SOCIAL MEDIA GUIDANCE FOR MEMBERS

1. Introduction
1.1 Social media is the term for online tools, websites and interactive media that 

enable users to interact with each other by sharing information, opinions, 
knowledge and interests.

1.2 For the purposes of this guidance, the term “social media” covers sites and 
applications including, but not restricted to, Facebook, Twitter, Instagram, 
LinkedIn, YouTube, blogs and similar sites. 

1.3 Members do not have to engage in social media. However it is recognised 
that it can provide significant opportunities for members to engage with the 
electorate.

1.4  This guidance has been prepared by the Monitoring Officer to help elected 
and co-opted members (“members”) avoid common governance and legal 
pitfalls. Members should also have regard to any guidance produced by the 
Communications Team in relation to style and content of social media posts.

1.5 Members should also consult the guidance contained in the Council’s 
Brand Identity Manual, which is published by the Communications Team.

2. Using Social Media
2.1 Accounts used by members for Council and constituency matters must 

make clear that the views expressed are those of the member, not of the 
Council. Members must not disclose information, make commitments or 
engage in activity on behalf of the Council unless they are authorised to do 
so. 

2.2 Members are personally responsible for the content which they publish on 
any form of social media.

2.3 It is vital to remember that members must follow the Code of Conduct at all 
times. This includes online activities and use of social media. 

2.4 Some social media tools allow others to make comments on your page or 
posts. Members will need to moderate these. This will involve treading a fine 
line between allowing people to disagree with you and offer their views 
without fettering their ability to engage with you, and ensuring that your page 
does not allow discriminatory, hateful or other abusive, intimidating or 

19



threatening comments. A sample approach to moderation can be found at 
http://news.bbc.co.uk/1/hi/help/4176520.stm. 

3. Etiquette & Style
3.1 It is advisable to keep your communications polite and professional. Plain 

language helps.

3.2 Treat other people with respect: avoid personal attacks and disrespectful, 
insulting or otherwise offensive personal comments. 

3.3 Avoid irony or sarcasm, both of which are difficult to communicate in short 
texts. 

3.4 If you make a mistake, admit it. Mistakes happen and they are likely to be 
noted before they can be removed from your account – and will be stored 
elsewhere anyway.  As a result there will always be a record of what you 
have said. Amending your text and acknowledging your mistake – perhaps 
by putting a line through the offending words and inserting a correction or 
providing an update section at the bottom of the post – shows you are not 
pretending it didn’t happen, and is much better than just deleting it when 
dealing with online misfires. 

3.5 Stay calm when responding to comments which attack you personally, or 
criticise your actions, circumstances, values or beliefs.  Always think 
carefully and calmly before you decide to post a response.   

4. Information Security & Confidentiality
4.1 Members should be aware that disclosure of personal data via social media 

does count as ‘processing’ that data. As a result it can only be lawfully done 
where the member has a lawful basis, such as consent. As a result, personal 
and confidential data should not be disclosed on social media sites. 

4.2 Papers that form part of confidential Council business, such as confidential 
and exempt (“Part 2”) information in reports must not be published,1 via 
social media or otherwise.  In addition other information which is marked as 
confidential, which includes legal advice or which you otherwise believe to 
be confidential must not be shared on social media or published. 

5. Meetings

1 The Access to Information Procedure Rules are available here: https://www.cumbria.gov.uk/council-
democracy/constitution/part5/5d.asp 

20

http://news.bbc.co.uk/1/hi/help/4176520.stm
https://www.cumbria.gov.uk/council-democracy/constitution/part5/5d.asp
https://www.cumbria.gov.uk/council-democracy/constitution/part5/5d.asp


5.1 Members taking part in a council meeting are performing an important public 
role role and this must be your priority in any meeting.  In performing your 
role, you are subject to public scrutiny which may also impact on public 
perceptions of the Council as a whole.  Members should therefore avoid 
using social media during a council meeting in any way that distracts them 
from their role in the meeting or may undermine public confidence in the 
decision making process.  

5.2 Members should avoid using social media during council meetings in any 
way which is distracting to other members, or disruptive to the business or 
conduct of the meeting. Giving oral commentary while live streaming from a 
meeting, or using flash photography for photo uploads will never be 
appropriate conduct in council meetings.  

5.3 In considering whether or not social media use may be disruptive, distracting 
or undermine the integrity of the meeting, the size, setting and business of 
the meeting will be relevant. Your role as a member in the meeting will also 
be relevant.  Discretely updating social media from your seat in the full 
council meeting is unlikely, in most cases, to be considered detrimental to 
your role or the conduct of the meeting.  However, when you are a decision 
maker on a smaller committee, it is important to consider the impact on your 
ability to perform your role.  Members of the Development Control and 
Regulation Committee have specifically agreed that they will not undertake 
any reporting of any kind from the meeting; this will include use of social 
media during the meeting. 2

5.4 The Chair of a meeting will have absolute discretion to require a member to 
stop reporting from a meeting via social media if, in their opinion, continuing 
to report would prejudice the running of the meeting.  

6. Legal Issues
6.1 Whilst social media opens up many possibilities for communicating with the 

local community and the wider world, it also exposes members to legal risks, 
some of which are discussed in this section.  It is members’ own 
responsibility to make sure they understand and comply with the law.

6.2 Members should remember that every time they tweet or post, that tweet or 
post is published, effectively being broadcast to the world. 

6.3 It is against the law to make an untrue statement about a person which 
damages their reputation, doing so is considered defamation. It is also 
against the law to permit a defamatory statement to be published. This 
includes allowing the statements to remain on your social media page. 

2 This committee receives considerable amounts of technical information both in advance and orally during the 
meeting.  The regulatory nature of this committee ensures that decisions are subject to significant scrutiny.  It 
is essential to public confidence that no actions are taken by members involved in the meeting that could lead 
to any suggestion that they were not fully engaged at all times.

21



Defamatory statements can include images, ‘memes’ or ‘gifs’3 as well as 
text. Making or permitting a defamatory statement via social media may 
result in a claim for liable being made against you personally by the person 
who claims their reputation has been damaged. If proven, defamation claims 
can result in significant awards of compensation, for which you would be 
personally responsible. 

6.4 Copyright is a form of intellectual property which is created when a person 
develops a new piece of work, such as text, pictures or films. Copyright 
restricts other peoples’ ability to use the new works without the permission 
of the author, or owner of the copyright. As a result, when using other 
people’s text or images members should ensure that they have the relevant 
permissions to do this. This includes when re-tweeting or ‘sharing’ other 
social media users content. Using other people’s creations without their 
consent is likely to be a breach of copyright which may result in an award of 
damages against the member personally. 

6.5 As discussed above, the Data Protection Act 2018 will be relevant when 
personal data is being published via social media. Members must therefore 
ensure that they have a lawful basis for processing personal data prior to 
sharing any individual’s personal details. Failure to comply with the Data 
Protection Act may result in action by the Information Commissioner against 
the member personally and/or the Council. This could result in a fine or other 
sanctions as well as significantly damaging constituents’ trust. 

6.6 Publishing obscene, hateful or other inappropriate material on social media 
is a criminal offence and may give rise to criminal sections.

6.7 All members, particularly those who sit on the Development Control and 
Regulation Committee should be aware of the risks of predetermination and 
bias in decision making.   Members must not make up their minds about a 
matter before hearing all the relevant information, which usually means not 
reaching a final view personally until the committee meeting has discussed 
the matter. The public, and the court if a decision is judicially reviewed will 
be able to review and consider your social media posts when evaluating 
whether you made up your mind in advance of the meeting.

7. Politics and Elections 
7.1 Whilst politics and elections are an essential part of ensuring that the 

Council functions appropriately and has a democratic mandate for its 
policies, the Council as an institution is politically neutral. Whilst members 
are free to make political points or canvass voters via social media, Council 
equipment (laptops, phones, tablets, etc.) must not be used for these 
purposes. 

3 Short animations or clips of film

22



7.2 Following elections the Electoral Commission requires that candidates 
provide a return of expenditure on any form of advertising or campaign 
literature, which includes web advertisements, such as YouTube videos and 
other promotional activities using social media.  Further guidance can be 
found here: https://www.electoralcommission.org.uk/i-am-a/candidate-or-
agent/local-elections-in-england 

8. Members’ Code of Conduct
8.1 Members should be mindful that the Members’ Code of Conduct (Part 4B of 

the Constitution) applies to them whenever they act in their official capacity 
as a member of the County Council. 

8.2 If you set up a social media account for “Councillor XXX” this will be an 
official account, albeit personal. All information published on that account 
will be subject to the Code. This is the case even where the topic is not 
necessarily linked to Council business, such as a restaurant review, 
because the account is presented as that of a member, rather than a private 
individual. 

8.3 If you make any comments on, or otherwise use a publicly accessible 
personal account in any way that clearly relates to your role as a councillor, 
the Code will apply to the comments. This will be the case even if you post 
a disclaimer saying the account is personal. Even if you do not refer to your 
role as a councillor, the comments may have the effect of bringing your 
office or the Council into disrepute which is a breach of the Code. 

8.4 The safest approach when using social media is to assume that any social 
media presence can be linked to your role as a member. Always make sure 
you comply therefore with the principles of conduct in the Members’ Code 
of Conduct. 

8.5 Failure to comply with this guidance may result in a beach of the Members 
Code of Conduct and a formal complaint being made to the Chief Legal 
Officer (Monitoring Officer).  

9. If you are being harassed, intimidated or threatened online
9.1 As users of social media, members may find themselves subject to online 

communications which contain threatening or abusive language. 

9.2 The Electoral Commission has produced a guide4 aimed at election 
candidates who may be subject to harassment or intimidation, which 
contains useful advice for members generally on how to safeguard 
themselves, friends and family if you are subject to harassment or 
intimidation, including online.

4 “When it goes too far” (Electoral Commission, 2019) https://www.electoralcommission.org.uk/i-am-
a/candidate -or-agent 

23

https://www.electoralcommission.org.uk/i-am-a/candidate-or-agent/local-elections-in-england
https://www.electoralcommission.org.uk/i-am-a/candidate-or-agent/local-elections-in-england


9.3 The Guide (see below for a link) advises that language that contains 
abusive or threatening language may constitute a criminal offence and 
you should bring such communications to the attention of the police.

9.4 The Guide goes on to highlight “red flag” indictors which should be 
brought to the immediate attention of the Police:

 Threats of imminent violence
 Fixated ideas
 If you become aware that the person has access to weapons or weapons 

skills
 If the person releases personal information about you which is not already 

in the public domain.

9.5 The Guide also gives advice on steps that can be taken to protect yourself 
and others:

 Keep detailed records of intimidating behaviour
 Avoid engaging with individuals who are harassing or stalking you, online 

or offline
 Report intimidation to your internet service provider
 Use ‘report abuse’ tools on social media platforms
 Block/report trolls
 Review your online information and minimise availability of personal 

information
 Seek advice from the police on personal safety. 

10. Further Guidance
Further guidance on the appropriate use of social media can be obtained 
from the Communications Team at [email]. 

Guidance on the Members’ Code of Conduct can be obtained from Iolanda 
Puzio, Chief Legal Officer, at Iolanda.puzio@cumbria.gov.uk

Iolanda Puzio
Chief Legal Officer
[XXX] 2019

24

mailto:Iolanda.puzio@cumbria.gov.uk


SOCIAL MEDIA GUIDANCE FOR MEMBERS – QUICK GUIDE

When you are performing your role as a member, you are subject to public scrutiny 
and you are expected to uphold the highest standards of conduct.  When you use 
social media publicly you are subject to the same scrutiny and expectations.

You are responsible for your use of social media.

To help you comply with the law and the Members’ Code of Conduct, the Council 
provides social media guidance for elected members.  Please take time to read the 
full guidance.

The quick guide below highlights key points from the Council’s social media 
guidance.

ALWAYS
 Comply with the conduct expected of members in the Member Code of 

Conduct.

 Make clear on your social media that the views expressed are your own – not 
the Council’s.

 Moderate your social media accounts and remove content that might breach 
the Member Code of Conduct or the law. 

 Even when engaging in robust debate or comment, keep your 
communications professional, polite and respectful of other people.

 Admit mistakes – there will always be a record of what you said somewhere, 
so it’s best to deal with mistakes immediately and up front.

 If you use social media in meetings – do so discretely and without distracting 
other members.

 Make sure you have permission before you use other people’s text, images or 
videos in your posts. 

 Assume that the Members’ Code of Conduct will apply to any comments you 
make publicly that relate to your role as a member (even if you don’t mention 
you are a member). 

 Take appropriate action to protect yourself and your family from harassment 
intimidation and threatening behaviour from other social media users.

25



NEVER
 Use language that is likely to be perceived as harassment, intimidation or 

threatening behaviour towards another person.

 Disclose confidential information you have received as a member.

 Disclose “Part 2” reports that you receive as a member.

 Disclose personal data unless you know you have a lawful basis – this will 
usually be the person’s written consent.

 Allow yourself to be distracted by social media when you are in a council 
meeting, distract other members or disrupt the business of the meeting.

 Make untrue statements or send images or videos that make untrue 
statements about another person.  

 Forward content that might be perceived as harassment, intimidation or 
threatening behaviour, breach confidentiality or copyright, wrongly disclose 
personal data or libel another other person.

NEED FURTHER ADVICE?

Contact:

The Communications Team on XXXXX

The Council’s Monitoring Officer, Iolanda Puzio on 07919298368 or by email at 
Iolanda.puzio@cumbria.gov.uk

26



STANDARDS COMMITTEE

Meeting date: 29 October 2019

From: Monitoring Officer

MONITORING OFFICER UPDATE

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1 At the meeting of this committee on 26 January 2018 changes were 
approved to the procedure for investigation of complaints regarding 
breaches of the Members’ Code of Conduct. These changes were set 
out in the Protocol for Investigation of Complaints (‘the Protocol’). 

1.2 This report is an update on complaints received since the update to the 
previous meeting.  

2.0 STRATEGIC PLANNING AND EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

2.1 A robust ethical standards regime supports the Council in achieving its 
strategic aims.

2.2 There are no equality implications directly arising out of this report.

3.0 RECOMMENDATION

3.1 It is recommended Members note the report.

4.0 BACKGROUND

4.1 The changes agreed by this committee on 28 January 2018 set out a clear 
process for the making of complaints about breaches of the Members’ Code 
of Conduct. The process was designed to make it clear how a complaint 
ought to be made, in what form it ought to be presented and how such a 
complaint would be dealt with.

4.2 Since the previous report to this Committee updating on complaints 
received, ten matters have been raised with the Monitoring Officer as 

27

Agenda Item 7



potential complaints against Members, of which seven are closed and three 
are ongoing. 

4.3 Of the seven closed matters:

4.3.1 Six were not pursued after the potential complainant was asked to complete 
the standard complaint form; and

4.3.2 One was rejected by the Monitoring Officer after the completed complaints 
form did not contain sufficient evidence of a breach; 

4.4 In relation to the three ongoing matters:

4.4.1 Two matters relate to the same event and therefore the same member.  The 
Monitoring Officer is dealing with these and is hopeful that a resolution can 
be reached so that referral to the Standards Committee will not be 
necessary.  The Monitoring Officer will provide an update on this complaint 
at the meeting of Standards Committee; and 

4.4.2 In respect of the third current complaint, a form was sent to the potential 
complainant recently but it has not been returned at the time of writing this 
report. The Protocol states that complaints will not be investigated unless a 
completed complaint form is received.  

5.0 CONCLUSION

5.1 Whilst the Monitoring Officer is currently dealing with three complaints under 
the Protocol agreed by this Committee, at the time of writing, there are no 
complaints that need to be referred to the Standards Committee for 
consideration.  

Iolanda Puzio
Monitoring Officer
18 October 2019

Please ensure that every part of this section where there is an asterisk*  is completed in 
accordance with the instructions before sending the report to Member Services, following 
which please delete this sentence.

APPENDICES

No appendices 

28



IMPLICATIONS

Staffing: N/A
Financial: N/A
Property: N/A
Electoral Division(s): N/A

Executive Decision Yes* No*

Key Decision Yes* No*

If a Key Decision, is the proposal published in the current Forward Plan? Yes* No* N/A*

Is the decision exempt from call-in on grounds of urgency? Yes* No*

Yes* No* N/A*If exempt from call-in, has the agreement of the Chair of the relevant 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee been sought or obtained?

Yes* No*Has this matter been considered by Overview and Scrutiny?
If so, give details below.

N.B. If an executive decision is made, then a decision cannot be implemented until the 
expiry of the eighth working day after the date of the meeting – unless the decision is 
urgent and exempt from call-in and the Head of Member Services and Scrutiny has 
obtained the necessary approvals.

PREVIOUS RELEVANT COUNCIL OR EXECUTIVE DECISIONS

26 April 2019.  

CONSIDERATION BY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY

Not considered by Overview and Scrutiny.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

No background papers.

Contact: Ben Spencer, 07919 297914, ben.spencer@cumbria.gov.uk

29



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	5 Implementation of Best Practices Recommended by the Committee on Standards in Public Life
	Appendix 1 CPSL Best Practice 21 10 2019 (v3)

	6 Social Media Guide for Members
	Appendix 1 21 10 2019 (v2)
	Appendix 2 Quick Guide for Members 21 10 2019 (v2)

	7 Monitoring Officer Update

